ORIGINAL

RECEIVED

SEP 17 2015

S.C. Supreme Court

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

IN THE SUPREME COURT

Certiorari to York County

J. Ernest Kinard, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

DETRICK WILLIAMS,

PETITIONER,

V.

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA,

RESPONDENT

APPELLATE CASE NO. 2014-002100

BRIEF OF PETITIONER

ROBERT M. PACHAK
Appellate Defender

South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense
Division of Appellate Defense
PO Box 11589
Columbia, S. C. 29211-1589
(803) 734-1343

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER.

ISSUE PRESENTED

Whether petitioner should have been granted a directed verdict to the charge of indecent exposure when the act did not occur in the view of any person on a street or highway and it was also not in a public place?

STATEMENT

Petitioner was convicted of indecent exposure after a bench trial before the Honorable R. Knox McMahon on June 19, 2013, in York County. He was represented by Phil Smith, Esquire. Erin Joyner, Esquire, was the assistant solicitor. Petitioner was sentenced to three (3) years incarceration concurrent to his current active sentence. (App. p. 1- p. 60) There was no appeal.

Petitioner filed an application for post-conviction relief on January 2, 2014. (App. p. 61- p. 67) Petitioner alleged he was denied his right to a direct appeal. Respondent filed a return dated April 10, 2014. (App. p. 68- p. 72) An evidentiary hearing was held on August 6, 2014, before the Honorable J. Ernest Kinard, Jr. Petitioner was present and was represented by William Michael Hemlepp, Jr., Esquire. Respondent was represented by J. Rutledge Johnson, Assistant Attorney General. Both petitioner and defense counsel testified at the hearing. (App. p. 73- p. 90) On September 26, 2014, Judge Kinard filed an order denying and dismissing the application for post-conviction relief. (App. p. 91- p. 96). Because Judge Kinard found that petitioner was not entitled to a belated appeal the current issue presented was raised in the petition for writ of certiorari. On August 19, 2015, this Court granted the petition and directed the parties to submit briefs.

This brief of petitioner follows.

ARGUMENT

Petitioner should have been granted a directed verdict to the charge of indecent exposure because that act did not occur in the view of any person on a street or highway and it was also not in a public place.

S.C. Code § 16-15-130 makes indecent exposure a criminal offense. It provides:

It is unlawful for a person to willfully, maliciously, and indecently expose his person in a public place, on property of others, or to the view of any person on a street or highway.

The indictment charging petitioner with indecent exposure alleged:

That on November 15, 2012, the Defendant, Deitrick Williams, did in York County, South Carolina did willfully, maliciously and indecently expose his person in a public place or on the property of others, all in violation of Section 16-15-130, Code of Laws of South Carolina (1976, as amended).

Yolanda Hilton testified that back in November of 2012, she was employed as a nurse at the Moss Justice Detention Center in York County. As a nurse she took care of the medical needs of the inmates. In the medical unit there were eight cells. There were two cells on one end separated by two more cells. Then there were four other cells in an open area. (App. p. 14, lines 16- p. 15, lines 14)

Petitioner was an inmate and was housed in a cell in a partitioned area of the medical unit. He said, "Nurse, come here." She replied, "Hold on. I'll be there in a minute." (App. p. 16, line 5- p. 17, line 21) When she got to the cell there was a glass you could see through and a flap on the

door that was open. Because petitioner was on a suicide watch, he was dressed in a blue smock-like gown with Velcro on the shoulder and back. (App. p. 18, lines 8-21) Petitioner was partially wearing the blue smock. He had it open in the front. He was looking through the glass at her. He was masturbating and she could see his penis. He looked at her and smiled. She turned and walked away. (App. p. 19, line 4- p. 20, line 4)

At the conclusion of the State's case, defense counsel moved for a directed verdict to the charge of indecent exposure. He argued that the act was not done in the view of any person on a street or highway. He said it was not a public place because it was a secured facility and was not held open to the public. (App. p. 41, line 10- p. 42, line 23) The assistant solicitor conceded that it was not a public place. (App. p. 42, line 24- p. 43, line 6) But she argued petitioner was on the property of another. It was not his home and it was not his property. (App. p. 44, lines 13-25; App. p. 49, lines 13-15)

The trial court agreed that the detention center was not a public place but it did find that the act was on property of others. (App. p. 51, line 16- p. 52, line 6) That ruling was in error. Due process as guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment requires "that no person shall be made to suffer the onus of a criminal conviction except upon sufficient proof—defined as evidence necessary to convince a trier of fact beyond a reasonable doubt of the existence of every element of the offense." Jackson v. Virginia, 443 U.S. 307, 316, 99 S.Ct. 2781, 2787 (1979).

Our Court has held:

[T]he trial judge is concerned with the existence or non-existence of evidence, not with its weight; and, although he should not refuse to grant the motion where the evidence merely raises a suspicion that the accused is guilty, it is his duty to submit the case to the jury if there be any substantial evidence which reasonably tends to prove the

guilt of the accused, or from which his guilt may be fairly and logically deduced. [Emphasis added].

State v. Littlejohn, 228 S.C. 324, 89 S.E.2d 924, 926 (1955); State v. Edwards, 298 S.C. 272, 379 S.E.2d 888 (1989), cert. denied, 493 U.S. 895, 110 S.Ct. 246 (1989).

In applying this standard, our Court has held that evidence which is “sufficient to raise a strong suspicion of the guilt of the accused” is not sufficient to constitute “any evidence form which the guilt of the accused may be fairly and logically deduced.” State v. Totherow, 263 S.C. 275, 210 S.E.2d 228, 230 (1974). See, also, State v. Turner, 117 S.C. 470, 109 S.E. 119, 120 (1921). The motion for a directed verdict should be granted, therefore, “where evidence merely raises a suspicion of guilt, or is such to permit the jury to merely conjecture or to speculate as to the accused’s guilt.” State v. Brown, 267 S.C. 311, 227 S.E.2d 674, 677 (1976), citing State v. Matarazzo, 262 S.C. 662, 207 S.E.2d 93, cert. denied, 420 U.S. 945 (1974). “If the evidence is consistent with both innocence and guilt it cannot support a conviction.” United States v. Varoz, 740 F.2d 772, 775 (10th Cir. 1984); United States v. Ortiz, 445 F.2d 1100, 1103 (10th Cir 1971). Guilt is only to be found when there is a “rationally supportable state of near certitude.” Evans-Smith v. Taylor, 19 F.3d 899, 906 (4th Cir 1994).

In this case the indecent exposure statute gives absolutely no definition of what “on the property of others” means. Here we have a government detention center. Is that property of “others?” Is it harmed by indecent exposure? In reality the detention center is owned by the taxpayers. Are they harmed by something they did not see? As this Court wrote in Williams v. State, 306 S.C. 89, 410 S.E.2d563 (1991):

Penal statutes are construed strictly against the State and in favor of the defendant State v. Cutler, 274 S.C. 376, 264 S.E.2d 420 (1980). As was aptly

summarized by Chief Justice Marshall in United States v. Wiltberger, (18 U.S.) 5 Wheaton 76, 95-96, 5 L.Ed. 37, 42 (1820):

The rule that penal laws are to be construed strictly is perhaps not much less old than construction itself. It is founded on the tenderness of the law for the rights of individuals; and on the plain principle that the power of punishment is vested in the legislative, not in the judicial department. It is the legislative, not the court, which is to define a crime, and ordain its punishment...