RECEIVED

JAN 14 2016

SC SUPREME COURT

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Supreme Court

CERTIORARI TO YORK COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

The Honorable J. Ernest Kinard, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No.: 2014-002100

Deitrick Williams..... Petitioner,

v.

State of South Carolina..... Respondent.

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

J. RUTLEDGE JOHNSON
Assistant Attorney General
SC Bar # 78871

P.O. Box 11549
Columbia, SC 29211
(803) 734-3737

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF ISSUE ON APPEAL

Whether the trial judge correctly denied Petitioner's motion for directed verdict as the charge of indecent exposure by Petitioner at the Moss Justice Detention Center certainly satisfies S.C. Code Ann. § 16-15-130.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Respondent adopts the Statement as presented by Petitioner.

ARGUMENT

The trial judge correctly denied Petitioner's motion for directed verdict as the charge of indecent exposure by Petitioner at the Moss Justice Detention Center certainly satisfies S.C. Code Ann. § 16-15-130.

In criminal cases, appellate courts only review errors of law. State v. Wilson, 345 S.C. 1, 5, 545 S.E.2d 827, 829 (2001). On appeal from the denial of a directed verdict, the appellate court must view the evidence and all reasonable inferences in the light most favorable to the State. State v. Weston, 367 S.C. 279, 292, 625 S.E.2d 641, 648 (2006). When ruling on a motion for directed verdict, the trial court should only consider the existence or non-existence of evidence and not its weight. State v. Cherry, 361 S.C. 588, 593-594, 606 S.E.2d 475, 478 (2004). Further, if the State presents any evidence which reasonably tends to prove defendant's guilt, or from which defendant's guilt could be fairly and logically deduced, the trial court must deny a directed verdict motion and submit the case to the jury. State v. Cherry, 361 S.C. 588, 593-594, 606 S.E.2d 475, 478 (2004). The appellate court must affirm the trial court "[i]f there is any direct evidence or any substantial circumstantial evidence reasonably tending to prove the guilt of the accused[.]" State v. Cherry, 361 S.C. 588, 593-594, 606 S.E.2d 475, 478 (2004).

Petitioner challenges the trial court's denial of his motion for directed verdict on the charge of indecent exposure. He contends he was entitled to a directed verdict because the legislature has given no definition to the term "on property of others."

South Carolina Code Ann. § 16-15-130 provides that "[i]t is unlawful for a person to willfully, maliciously, and indecently expose his person in a public place, on property of others, or to the view of any person on a street or highway."

In this case, when viewed in the light most favorable to the State, there was ample evidence from which the jury could find Petitioner indecently exposed himself to Victim on the

“property of others.” Ms. Hilton testified she was working at the Moss Justice Detention Center located in York, SC. (App. p. 14 line 20-p. 15 line 1). She also testified Petitioner was on suicide watch and was wearing a blue, Velcro smock. (App. p. 18 lines 12-21). She stated Petitioner called for her attention and upon seeing Petitioner, Petitioner had the smock open in the front and was masturbating. (App. p. 18 lines 3-4; p. 19 lines 7-19). Ms. Hilton could see Petitioner’s penis. (App. p. 19 lines 20-21). At the conclusion of the State’s case, Petitioner’s trial counsel moved for a directed verdict as the detention center was a secured facility that was not held open to the public. (App. p. 42 lines 15-23). The trial court agreed, but held Petitioner “clearly willfully, maliciously, and indecently exposed himself **on property of others.**” (App. p. 52 lines 5-6) (emphasis added).

The trial judge properly denied the directed verdict as the Moss Justice Detention Center is clearly the “property of others.” Petitioner has no vested interest in the property of the detention center as to claim it as his own residence. This building is technically owned by the citizens of York County, thereby making it “property of others” as to satisfy the definition of §16-15-130. See State v. Rouse, 262 S.C. 581, 206 S.E.2d 873 (1974) (stating Petitioner’s indecent sexual demonstration with exposed private parts to a co-worker while working at a business establishment was sufficient for indecent exposure). Allowing a windfall for Petitioner simply because the legislature has not given a direct definition to “property of others” would lead to absurd results. See State v. Jacobs, 393 S.C. 584, 587, 713 S.E.2d 621, 623 (2011) (“Although it is a well-settled principle of statutory construction that penal statutes should be strictly construed against the state and in favor of the defendant, courts must nevertheless interpret a penal statute that is clear and unambiguous according to its literal meaning”). Given that the meaning of

“property of others” is clear and unambiguous as Petitioner has no private right to the detention center, this Court must interpret S.C. Code §16-15-130 according to its literal meaning.

Viewing the evidence in a light most favorable to the State, there was substantial evidence supporting the denial of Petitioner’s directed verdict motion. The trial court correctly denied Petitioner’s motions and its ruling should be affirmed.

CONCLUSION

For all the foregoing reasons stated above, Respondent respectfully requests the judgment of the lower court be affirmed.